
PLANNING COMMISSION 

PACKET 
 

April 27, 2016 

 

Hello All, 

 

Enclosed please find your packet for the meeting of May 2, 2016.   

 

We have: 

 Three resurveys 

 Development Plan for Mountain Brook Elementary field (restroom 

and scoreboard) 

 Carry over Amendment regarding Open Houses/Home Tours 

 

If you receive any citizen inquiries regarding these cases the plans may be 

viewed by going to: 

www.mtnbrook.org 

 Government 

 Other Meeting Agendas 

 Planning Commission  

 2016-May-2 Planning Commission Agenda 

 

If you have any questions about these cases please don’t hesitate to give me 

a call at 802-3821 or send me an email at hazend@mtnbrook.org. 

 

 

Looking forward to seeing you on Monday!   

Dana  
 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/
mailto:hazend@mtnbrook.org


  MEETING AGENDA 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

MAY 2, 2016 

PRE-MEETING: (ROOM A106) 5:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING: (ROOM A108) 5:30 P.M.  

CITY HALL, 56 CHURCH STREET, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 

 

1. Call To Order 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  

 

3. Approval of Minutes:   April 4, 2016 

 

4. Case P-16-10:  Resurvey of Lots 9 and 10 Block “E” Overlook Subdivision being a resurvey 

of Lot 10 and the west 15’ of Lot 9 of Overlook Subdivision as recorded in Map Book 15, 

Page 19, in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama; and a 10’ strip off 

south of Lot 10 and the west 15’ of Lot 9 and being bounded on the east and west by a 

continuation of the east and west line of above property and on the south by the north line of 

Euclid Avenue situated in the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 33, Twp-17S, R-2W, Jefferson 

County, Alabama – 700 Euclid Avenue - Bryant Gann Building Group, LLC 

 

5. Case P-16-11:   Resurvey of map of a resurvey and subdivision of Lot 4, Block 707, 

Birmingham, by the Elkton Land Company, as recorded in Map Book 88, Page 63, in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County; situated in the NW ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 

32, Twp-17S, R-2W, Jefferson County, Alabama – 200 Beech Street  -  Renee Corda 

 

6. Case P-16-12:   Resurvey of Lots 19 & 24-A, Rockhouse Circle, being a resurvey of Lot 24-

A of a resurvey of Lots 20, 24 & part of Lots 21 & 25 of Rockhouse Circle as recorded in 

Map Book 69, Page 71 and part of Lot 19 of Rockhouse Circle as recorded in Map Book 19, 

Page 23, both in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama; situated in 

the West ½ of Section 5, Twp-18S, R-2W, Jefferson County, Alabama  -  3215 Salisbury 

Road ( John and Donna Nathan) and 3216 Rockledge Road (Elaine Smith) 

 

7. Case P-16-13:  Consideration of a development plan of the Mountain Brook Elementary 

School field for the installation of a restroom and scoreboard. 3041 Cahaba Road – 

Mountain Brook Board of Education, City of Mountain Brook Parks and Recreation. 

 

8. Amendment to Article XVIII, Section 129-295 Temporary Uses Regarding Open Houses, 

Home Tours and Special Events. (carried over from April 4, 2016) 

 

9. Next Meeting:  June 6, 2016 

 

10. Adjournment 

 

 



                                Minute Book 19  

 

 V:\Minutes & Agendas\PC\Minutes\2016\20160404                                                                                                                         April 4, 2016 

  

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

APRIL 4, 2016 

CITY HALL, 56 CHURCH STREET, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 
 

 

The meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, was held in the City 

Hall Council Chamber on Monday, April 4, 2016 at 5:30 p.m.  The roll was marked as follows: 

 

Present: Fred Murray, Chairman                 Absent:         Alice Williams, Secretary           

 Susan Swagler, Vice Chairman        

  Cay Alby        

Jack Carl 

  Philip Black        

  Jamie Gregory 

  

Also present:   Dana Hazen, Director of Planning, Building and Sustainability; Building Official 

Glen Merchant; Attorney Whit Colvin and Administrative Assistant Tammy Graham. 

 

1. Call to Order:   Chairman Murray called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m., there being a quorum 

 present. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda:    

 

Motion:  Mrs. Swagler, to approve as printed  

Second:   Mr. Black 

Vote:  Unanimous approval 

 

3. Approval of Minutes:  March 7, 2016 

 

Motion: Mr. Black, to approve as printed 

Second:       Mrs. Alby 

Vote: Unanimous approval 

 

4. Case P-16-05  -  3924 Montevallo Road  -  TDL Homes, LLC; Terri Lyon                   EXHIBIT 1 

 

 Resurvey of Lot 2 Montcrest Estates as recorded in Map Book 24, Page 93, in the Office of the Judge 

of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama; situated in the SE ¼ of Section 33, Twp-17S, R-2W, 

Jefferson County, Alabama.   

 

Wes Jones of Weygand Surveyors, 169 Oxmoor Road in Birmingham, represented the applicant, 

TDL Homes, LLC.   This request is for a clean-up resurvey and was a carry-over case from the March 

meeting. 

 

Public comments: 

 

Trip Galloway, 4144 Stone River Road, Mountain Brook, represented Britt and Ashley Monroe.  The 

Monroe’s address is 3922 Montevallo Road, which borders the case property.  Mr. Galloway stated 



                                Minute Book 19  

 

 V:\Minutes & Agendas\PC\Minutes\2016\20160404                                                                                                                         April 4, 2016 

  

 

that after a discussion with Terri Lyon, property owner of 3924 Montevallo Road, the Monroes are 

willing to support the proposed resurvey. 

  

Mrs. Alby asked if corrections were made to the final plat to comply with all applicable requirements 

of the Mountain Brook Subdivision Regulations.  Mrs. Hazen confirmed corrections.     

 

Motion: Mr. Gregory, to approve resurvey as requested 

Second:   Mrs. Alby 

Vote: Ayes:  Fred Murray   

   Susan Swagler 

   Cay Alby 

   Jack Carl 

   Philip Black 

   Jamie Gregory 

 Nays: None  

 

Resurvey approved by a vote of 6-0. 

 

5. Case P-16-09 –  122 Lake Drive  - Sam and Heidi Yates                                                EXHIBIT 2 

 

Sam and Heidi Yates, property owners of 120 and 122 Lake Drive, request approval for the 

installation of an alternative solar energy system consisting of a ground mount array (55 feet x 8 feet, 

6-1/2 feet high). – 120/122 Lake Drive (undeveloped lake property). 

 

Mr. Yates presented the request (property owner and President of Vulcan Solar, LLC).  

 

Mrs. Hazen asked if the property is fenced.  Mr. Yates:  The entire property is fenced.   The largest 

span is 4’ high, for approximately 150’; up to approximately 7 ½’ tall in some places. 

 

Chairman Murray:  Have you spoken with all adjoining neighbors?  Yates:  All but Matt Moore. 

 

Public comments: 

 

Keith and Anne Allen, 20 Montcrest Road, neighbors to the rear: 

 

 Proposed structure location is visible from the back of the primary floor of their house. 

 Would like to see the City create a policy to protect property owners potentially affected by these 

type structures; shield from sight. 

 Concerned that the value of surrounding properties might drop because of the structure. 

 The property is large enough to locate in a different area. 

 

Mr. Yates stated that the system could be split to get out of the line of site for the Allens, or shifted on 

the property.  Landscaping will also be added; however, cannot plant on the front side, which is the 

side toward the Allen’s property.   

 

Mr. Carl:  Since there is no noise emitted, it seems to be strictly a screening issue.  He asked Mr. and 

Mrs. Allen if they would have a problem with the location of the structure if it were adequately 

screened.   Mrs. Allen stated that Mr. Yates told her that there could be some reflection from the 

panels.  Mrs. Allen said there are too many unknowns at this point. 

 



                                Minute Book 19  

 

 V:\Minutes & Agendas\PC\Minutes\2016\20160404                                                                                                                         April 4, 2016 

  

 

Mrs. Allen added other points to consider:  Because a lot of children play on the property, would the 

structure need to be locked for safety reasons?  Could the panels come loose in a storm?   

 

Mr. Yates:  The system is rated for up to 150 mph winds which meets all national/international 

standards.  The fencing should be built in such a way that it is difficult to penetrate. 

  

Mr. Gregory:  Would this system be just for personal use, or professional use as well?   

Mr. Yates:  It will provide an opportunity to show customers an example of the array and how the 

system integrates with the house, but only to a limited extent.     

 

Chairman Murray stated that this type structure falls under ‘alternative structure’ in the Zoning 

Ordinance and there are many issues to consider.  Guidelines need to be established for the protection 

of both the user and those that border them. 

 

Motion: Mrs. Alby, for a continuance for two months, so that the Committee can create a policy 

 regarding these type structures.  

Second:   Mr. Black 

Vote: Ayes:      Fred Murray   

   Susan Swagler 

   Cay Alby 

   Jack Carl 

   Philip Black 

   Jamie Gregory 

 Nays: None  

 

Motion to continue for two months approved by a vote of 6-0. 

 

6. AMENDMENT                                                                                                                EXHIBIT 3 

 

Amendment to Article XVIII, Section 129-295 Temporary Uses Regarding Open Houses, 

Home Tours and Special Events. 

 

Points of discussion: 

 

 Should the sale of food and beverages be permitted?  Gift items?    

 Number of consecutive days allowed within a period of time. 
  

Mr. Black recommended 6 days rather than 5 within a 14 day period.  The Commission will need to 

gather more information from other sources, like Decorator Show House and other charities that host 

similar events.  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

Motion: Mr. Black, to continue one month for further consideration 

Second:   Mr. Gregory 

Vote: Ayes: Fred Murray   

   Susan Swagler 

   Cay Alby 

    

 



                                Minute Book 19  

 

 V:\Minutes & Agendas\PC\Minutes\2016\20160404                                                                                                                         April 4, 2016 

  

 

   Jack Carl 

   Philip Black 

   Jamie Gregory 

 Nays: None  

 

Motion to continue for one month approved by a vote of 6-0. 

 

7. Next Meeting: May 2, 2016 

 

8. Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting stood adjourned 

at 6:10 p.m. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Tammy Graham, Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Planning Commission Application 
PART I 

Project Data 
> 

Address of Subject Property 7 cc? EUC\ \ d 14 u c2-- 

Zoning Classification 'h c, 
* 

Name of Property 0wnc r ( s j  bLur,.i3f - Clj>qTr\ &(\\C\,v\ci <,fc-u 0 

Phone Number a- ;?&$ - ~ l \ ' j F j  Email .bY LIQl,f ~ \ t ~ c \ ~ , q ~ n Y l r ~ ~ t  
d I 

Name of Representative Agent (if applicable) 

------ 

Phone Number Email 

D Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing 

Plans 
D See applicable Section of the Zoning Ordinance for submittal requirements 

pertaining to your particular application. Applicable Code Section may be found 

in Part 11, list of application types. Contact City Planner with any specific 

P-16-10



SPRING
ST

FAIR
MONT

 DR

LORENA LN

PEACHTREE
ST

H
O
NEYSUCKLE

LN
W
M

ONTCREST DR

EU
CLI

D A
VE

DE
XT
ER

AV
E

CARLA CIR

BR
AD

DO
CK
 AV

E

HERITAGE CIR

P
EACHTREE RD

U
N
N
AM

ED
 RD

722710
113

706
138177

137

720704

133

116

700
136

114
718132

716711 112

125
120

707
620 49121 616

608

612

703 414345117

615 626

622
613101

611 618

609 616
600

3638

614
42

607
612

35
610512 605 34

33603
508 613608 31601 611

606 29

32

609
604

709
126 707

714
719119

712
710

717
117

503 18

212
129132

125

121

229

117 113

131136 128
134

184

129 124
159 132

127 120130
157 125

185
116160 128

123
155 112126158 121 108

104119154
151 718

716
117152

181
714 115140

122
129

715
708

115120
706

128 713
118

711700
116

511 607
602 26

30

509
600 605 27

507

7

28 28
603505

6
510503 26

5
601

25
508 8

501
506 24

27
23

504
25

4
509

2221
500 20

1
2505

23 3
2019

168

204

40

111

704

208

147

604

705

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

P-16-10 Zoning



P-16-10       
 
     Resurvey in existing Residence C zoning 

 

 Clean-up Resurvey: Note that there is a 10-foot strip along the Euclid right-of-

way that was vacated and added to this lot and others along Blocks D, E and F in 

1941.  The old front property line and the right side property line are the subject 

of the clean-up resurvey. 

 

Recent Background:  The Planning Commission approved a clean-up resurvey for 

this lot on March 7, 2016 that did not include the 10-foot strip along the Euclid 

right-of-way.  After the resurvey was approved in March it came to light that the 

10-foot strip of right-of-way had been vacated in 1941, so the resurvey has been 

revised to include the vacated strip.  The previous resurvey (Case P-16-07) was 

not recorded. 

 

 May be approved as a final plat; the following corrections for the final plat are 

required by the Subdivision Regulations, and are suggested as conditions of 

approval: 

 

1) note zoning district (Residence C) on plat; 

 

2)  indicate all required building setbacks: primary front (Euclid) 35, secondary front 

(Fairmont) 15, s10, r35. 

 

3) Let the plat reflect Lot 10 -“A.” 

 

 Meets the Zoning Regulations for the Residence C district. 

 

 Overall layout is acceptable, with the final plat to fully comply with all 

applicable requirements of the Mountain Brook Subdivision Regulations. 

 

 No floodplain present. 

 

 Project Data:   

 

NAME:  Resurvey of Lots 9 & 10 Block “E” Overlook Subdivision 

 

CURRENT ZONING: Residence C 

 

OWNER:  Bryant Gann Building Group, LLC 

 

LOCATION: 700 Euclid Avenue 





'( , t; ' . 
(II &tAM. (t. ~ '. . .• ~ ' . 

"." ... cca'; U- . . ." 1', . ~ 
l . ;mur AI. ... Jt ~"~NJdiHI ,.. ....... ,. _",ot CID~' . 
. .t(M ~,." hl¥. 1~~ 0,. ~ W1~$.'~ til ~ ~ 1a4 l,uc ta 

. ..., ot a-t ot: ·~_ ", fo.r.ld, J.7' a-ru. 21ton, 14 wW..ul_ f 

.... u o..*Mt,. a ,~, 01' :plat of ~ 1 • . NO . U Ott'ioe ot tM Juq. 
' I'h~ tOr 'J t~l'.aD CCII)r'7. J.1a~. 123 .... ' · "5 :~\.I.c- ,9. aDl . ..-....- '. 

f ', ' .- . ,~ no OD401'dpe4. ~ SoO'tlUh _ wito ~~ .. r. Sootoh, • 
- .. ""-. as umarr..lM 8Il, &1-. ~ IMt.r IID4 k\.Wa4 1A~ c. Bat.N-, Loulao· 

, f , ~~ pi! ma.~ I B. l~ol».r4ecm, 'L I. 'IontCP.wt"ow, Q:f d. II- Son1J.C" r. M'-
, .. )1\\., Jr. od wi to ' 1I1l4r04 ~JOIbl" u.s J~ 1Iu"1'eIIl Lf~ 'aDd 'w1te Jbt oM Boobt Leaoh 

• ~ tM _1" of ttoll ~I ' pJ'OPft1:t ab'll1ltlq .' ' o~bt. lotoOt 3 i 4r1 ~ 171J:lc [:>' 
I Wot\JDNo-t ot \be '~1'1l liDe' ot asolU • - ~ ot the 5cNtb01:Jl LiDt. ot 
'" 11~.b -D·, -.. add ' -,- •• '~0IIIIl _ t&14 .11&P or P'e,. of ~ooJr. q4 

j. , • ~ !'be UJl4ordpJa, a. ~. ~ ~ ~ ~ the aton-
" ~1'" 4rl"..." N dOllrw. ot TUUlq .u: ... , ~ial of uit ... 
. _ '<1M w-.;, beniDattor part ar17 .ot tot't1t. u4 - ; 

• , 1im:uu, Allot ttw' propes:t7 • oW 4I~rl1Mi4 ho. ClUtd .. of a1l\1 
lbahiJ*!lt7. 1ID4.JIG portloa ot .. 14 4rt'NW07 ...... iDatt.r do.or1bed 11 D..- or 
bU ".. alld u _ publ10 roa4 0'1' nroot. ot' a' publio all.,.. aBd 11 BOt' ~. 1lO1' be 
it .... 1' boeD pil404 or bl!rO"lW4 .... pabl14 road or ~, _ I!P pabl1. -.l.l.,.. aDd t'alIlt 
oGe:rr.n1ODt _Ul.I of 'l..ajrI .... . IID4' oP'"' to aDd 0-.0. tlwir propore-, 11 .tiordoel to C'ther 
,01'''-''' t'1r. or oorporatl .. ~' pi'oporn iD tbe u-...t .ot l.aDd nbrUecl iD tho Rid 
..,. or plat ~'OYerloOk 'bJ .... ~ ""ft. and all. or ..... "r.mnc..fOrtiCIIU ot _ 
1U0ft fJ'tnot. ~ :all.,.. tee! 1rJ weh ..p or plat. . ' , . . . 

" WOIf~, iD O(lDIl~~'dlOil of. u. i .. __ ".. .... w, tho UDdor-
I1dwd Joe A. Sootoh IID4 wit. Loui .. ,. Sooto , John-" tldo. iID amaJ'I'i~..-s, Bel_ 
~. lalllll' aDd hu.bc4 ~ O. Ba:t.r) LoC.o lio~OID and ba·. __ I. B. Rlobard
'9D1 I. K • . Sora" •• -.n.daw ot c.. 1L 'Jo2;:l"" r~ tI. ~'bi". ~Jl'. IIDd rite JIlldJ'Od P., "abitt 
UId J. 'wt.rra- Loa~b aD4 wit. Ru4ne Booht Leo.oh, .. all tto In ot ~be ~OPOr'7'~bu'tt-
!Dc ·tho at~101lW 3 4r1-7. do Mro'bJ toOl .. o ..... od aDd aDDUll~A ,tha. -~.rt.1.n 10 toot] r 4r1ftW1l7 l7bc .ort .. o-t of ' tho lJortbel"'ll liDe ot _:-~.~ 
A~I ( ••• h_ on nid _p or, plat o1i o..rl~ ~d ot tbe Soathal"D bOlDid-
&rfl! ot Ii'loob RD-. "'I" 0 4. ,- ( ••• ll" ' .':14 _p ' ,plat of oftrl~lXII. t&t _. 
po~1oa. 1t arr:t. iDol\ldod iD a ..r;~1_ of Pau..t DMw IID4 Lo~ Aft'ffIll /to 0 
lDteraootiOil with ' asoli4 Aft'ffIl • a •• ~ OlD .. ~ .., • pl..t ot OYorl,ook. It lM1D& ,
thl ~iOlD ot thl lUIdor.ip4 that tM.. iDltru.Dt IMll opel"llto to do.uot tho 1'oroo 
11114' _~toot o~thl doelioaUOIl fd I&i 4r1TnaJ be~bo ... a-n1cra1ar17 dlaorib-
114" b7.at ~ -or pl&.t or Oftrl~ . opt! tMt -pan lBol~ iD rau-t ... aDd 
Lord. .A ' . • Ud U ' dl ..... , an pab110 rieIR' iD tb&1I ,.nf- portialll ot .. ld __ 
_ 4r1~, ftoatoel 'bJ t Jutru.u~. II> • I 

" ' . I1 ... 1nfnu . .."j) ._. tht lDldor'i&De4 haw '* ewr;;; .~ oIQl' hani1l ' 
u.s ...,.~. tho f-'" 4., of ~ ... D. ~.~. ' .. ' , , 

-.' . 
.... ' 

~ ", '- ' J' 

" 

\ -" 

I ' 

, 
/ 

;h-q4&A 

• . ,. .. . 

" . " 

- ' , 

J 

J-;.' 

hazend
Highlight

hazend
Highlight

hazend
Highlight

hazend
Highlight





UNOFFIC
IA

L



FA
IRM

O
N
T D

R

EUC
LID

AV
E

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN,
IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

P-16-10 Aerial



Planning Commission Application 
PART I 

Project Data \ 

Address of Subject Property '&la 
J 

~ Zoning Classification 

Name of Property Owner(s) 

I Phone Number 7.05 - - \O \ R Email S\BG&& 
Name of Representative Agent (if applicable) 

Emai 1 

[9) Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing 

Plans 

D See applicable Section of the Zoning Ordinance for submittal requirements 

pertaining to your particular application. Applicable Code Section may be found 

in Part 11, list of application types. Contact City Planner with any specific 

questions as to required plans submittal. 

P-16-11



M
ON

TE
VA
LLO

RD

WHITTI
ER DR

BIENVILLE CT

CRESTVIEW DR

G
R
EE
N
B
R
IA
R
LN

N
A
SH

 C
IR

XA
VI
ER
CIR

CA
M
ELLIA

 CIR

B
E
ECH

ST

H
A
G
O
O
D
ST

K
IN
G
SB
U
R
Y
AV
E

CA
M
ELLIA

D
R

EUCLID AVE

FO
X
H
A
LL
 R
D

C
R
ES
TW

O
O
D
D
R

D
EL
M
A
R
TE
R

SIMS AVE

BEECH CTMO
NT
GO

ME
RY 

DR GREENBRIARCIR

BE
NT
LEY

DR

SHERIDAN PL

SHERIDAN DR

BEECH LN

BEECH CIR

L

AKE DR

144
140104

136109108

776 780 137

133

777 129

126773 125

771
767

121120
756

754 117

752
750

112 109

124

137
112

240 241 232 245
912916 920924

928
236 230

237 241

232 921 932233 913228

909
901

228 229 226 936925229
224 225 224

929 940
225220 221 222

216 937
949945 953

212 941208 200
218 221
216 219 904 908 912 916900214

215
800

804 808 816 901 905 909 913

801 210
805 809 813 817 208

207208 206209 208

204 205 205 204204
203 202

201 200 201 200

811 833

909 104104
101

100 101 908 100
4075102

100
98

753

749 108
747 105104

100 101

754 800

799
801 815 817

100 101

911913 131
121120 120 121

123
910 920

119118 118 117
126117116 116

125115114 114
113 909 112 111 112

109
113112 112

110 111 109110 108109
908 120108 109 105

100

106 107 106
103

105

132
121 125116 128

120
913915 1005

810
808 838

1000 1004914

122 123 923122 123

208 212

202
209
205

200
203

107
105

103

211

113

104 105

903
905

101 100

900 902

104

149148
145144

141140

806

921917

805

807

809

811

314

313

318
306

311
301

207

205 206
203

201

1000

816

120

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

P-16-11 Zoning



P-16-11



P-16-11       
 
     Resurvey in existing Residence B zoning 

 

 “Clean-up” resurvey:  Current legal is described as Lot 7, except the north 5 feet 

of Lot 7.  So, the north 5 feet was deeded to Lot 8 at some point. 

 

 May be approved as a final plat; the following corrections for the final plat are 

required by the Subdivision Regulations, and are suggested as conditions of 

approval: 

 

1) note zoning district (Residence B) on plat; 

 

2) for required minimum setbacks indicate “primary front 35 feet” and “secondary 

front 35 feet;” 

 

 Meets the Zoning Regulations for the Residence B district. 

 

 Overall layout is acceptable, with the final plat to fully comply with all 

applicable requirements of the Mountain Brook Subdivision Regulations. 

 

 No floodplain present. 

 

 No relevant history or prior cases. 

 

 Project Data:   

 

NAME:  Corda’s Beech Street Resurvey 

 

CURRENT ZONING: Residence B 

 

OWNER:  Renee Corda 

 

LOCATION: 200 Beech Street 





B
EECH

ST

SIMS AVE

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN,
IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

P-16-11 Aerial



Planning Commission Application 
PART I 

Pro-iect Data 

Address of Subject Property 3215 Salisbury Road (Nathan); 3216 Rockledge Road (Smith) 

Zoning Classification Class 3 - Residential 

Name of Property Owner(s) John H. Nathan and Donna B. Nathan, and Elaine K. Smith 

Phone Number 205-380-5329 Email john@nathan-nathan.com 

Name of Representative Agent (if applicable) 

Frank C. Galloway Ill, Galloway, Scott, Moss & Hancock, LLC 

Phone Number 205-949-5580 Email fcg3@gallowayscott.com 

GX) Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing 

Plans 

ID See applicable Section of the Zoning Ordinance for submittal requirements 

pertaining to your particular application. Applicable Code Section may be found 

in Part 11, list of application types. Contact City Planner with any specific 

questions as to required plans submittal. 

P-16-12



Galloway Scott Moss & Hancock LLC 
Attorneys at Law 

April 12, 2016 

Via Hand Deliverv 
Dana 0. Hazen, MPA, AlCP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Re: NathanISmith Resurvey 

Dear Dana: 

Please allow this letter to confirm that the Nathans and Mrs. Smith wish to  resurvey their adjoining 
properties so that the portion of Mrs. Smith's property below the cliff (which is already realistically 
an extension of the Nathan backyard) be transferred to the Nathans and the common backyard 
border be relocated. The resulting lots will both have conforming rear set-backs. The extreme and 
unusual circumstances associated with the cliff surrounding this proposal distinguish it from any 
other situations such that this matter should not serve as a precedent for any other future 
proposed resurveys. 

Enclosed herein is a check for $100 payable to the City of Mountain Brook for the resurvey fee 
along with a completed Part I of the Planning Commission Application. It is my understanding that 
Ray Weygand's office has delivered to you the necessary copies of maps and proposed plat. These 
items, along with the list of adjoining owners as researched by Land Title Company of Alabama 
(which was emailed to  Tammy Graham earlier today) should constitute a complete submission for 
the proposed resurvey. 

I will attend the pre-meeting and the regular meeting in May. In the interim, if you or anyone else 
associated with the Planning Commission has any questions regarding the foregoing, please 
contact me. 

Sincerely, 

FCG I l l/jjg 
Enclosures 

2200 Woodcrest Place Suite 310 Birmingham AL 35209 Telephone: 205.949.5580 Facsimile: 205.949.5581 

P-16-12



ARGYL
E RD

O
XFO

RD
RD

RO
BIN

S L
N RIDGE DR

LA
N
E PA

R
K
 R
D

W
IN
D

SOR
CIR

SALIS
BURY

RD

FAIRWAYDR

SOMERSE
T C
IR

STE
RLING RD

COUNTRY CLUB RD

CARLISLE RD

ROCK
LEDG

E R
D

3238
3234

3245
3239

3522

3620

3624

3520

3628

3248
3240

3220

3216

35093212 3292

3208
3225

3200 3219

35053217

3045 32203097
3216

3070
3095

3214

3220

3230
3042

3212

3038

3069

3212

3206

3100

3025

22011724

17181714

2211

17251721

2217

3100
3236

3215 3240
3090 3201

3401

3084

3621

6
4

5
3

2

32103200
3074

3111

3233
3070 3093

32353224
30963081 3215

3229
3069

3098 31013057
3084

3240

3242

3612

3214
3216

3218

3222 3226

3041

3020

35103501 3525

3502 3519

3509

3245

3228
3234

3237

3225
3221

3215

1416

3220
1411

1420

1419

3217
3204

32093118
3205

3110 3201
3108

3121
3117

3109
3105

3062

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

P-16-12 Zoning



P-16-12       
 Resurvey in existing Residence A zoning 

 

 “Clean-up” resurvey: The rear of existing Lot 19 (Rockledge Road) is at a much higher 

elevation than the front of the lot (making it inaccessible from the lower portion of the 

lot).  The owners of existing Lot 24-A (Salisbury Road) wish to purchase the rear of Lot 

19, since it is level with their lot and would be usable to them. 

 

 The proposed resurvey does not meet the Zoning Regulations for the Residence-A district 

which requires a minimum 30,000 square foot lot.  The Rockledge lot is presently non-

conforming with a square footage of 29,348 and would be further reduced to 22,765.  The 

Salisbury lot would increase in square footage and is conforming in both scenarios.   

 

If the Planning Commission is inclined to approve this resurvey, a variance to the 

subdivision regulations is required to by Section 1.7 of the City’s Subdivision 

Regulations to allow the square footage reduction to the Rockledge lot, and a finding 

supporting the variance should be noted in the motion to approve. 

“1.7 Variance and Exceptions. 

Whenever the shape or topography of a parcel to be subdivided is so unusual that the strict 

application of these regulations would result in substantial and unreasonable hardship to the 

developer, the Commission may vary or modify the requirements of these regulations so that the 

developer is allowed to develop the parcel in a reasonable manner; provided, that any such 

variance must not be contrary to the public welfare or the public interest of the City, and the 

parcel must be developed in a manner which is consistent with the general intent and spirit of 

these regulations. The Commission may make any such variance subject to such conditions as 

will, in its judgment, substantially secure the objectives of the standards or requirements so 

varied. Any variance thus authorized, and the reason(s) therefore, must be entered, in writing, in 

the minutes of the Commission.” 

 May be approved as a final plat; the following corrections for the final plat are required 

by the Subdivision Regulations, and are suggested as conditions of approval: 

 

1) note zoning district (Residence A) on plat; 

 

2) indicate all required building setbacks: front and rear (40 feet) and sides (15 feet); 

 

 Overall layout is acceptable, with the final plat to fully comply with all applicable 

requirements of the Mountain Brook Subdivision Regulations. 

 

 No floodplain present. 

 

 No relevant history or prior cases. 

 

 

 

 



 Project Data:   

 

NAME:  Resurvey of Lots 19 and 24-A, Rockhouse Circle 

 

CURRENT ZONING: Residence A 

 

OWNERS:  John and Donna Nathan (Salisbury) & Elaine Smith (Rockledge) 

 

LOCATION: 3215 Salisbury Road & 3216 Rockledge Road 





SALIS
BURY

RD

CO
UN
TRY

CLU
B RD

O
XFO

RD
RD

STER
LING

RD

ROCKL
EDGE R

D

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN,
IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

P-16-12 Aerial





April 8,201 6 

Restroom and Scoreboard at Mountain Brook Elementary Field 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The Park Board would like to install a pre-fabricated restroom near the field at 
Mountain Brook Elementary. This restroom will be similar to the ones at Brookwood 
Forest Elementary and Overton Park except that it will have two handicap accessible 
restrooms. It will be 10' x 1 8' which includes a small porch on the front. It will be 10' 
tall at the apex of the roof. A photo and plans of the restroom have been included with 
this request. 

The Park Board would also like to install a scoreboard near the restroom. This 
will be similar to the scoreboards located at Crestline Elementary and each baseball field 
at the Sports Complex. I believe these are approximately 4' x 8'. A photo of an existing 
scoreboard is included on the next page. These projects will be installed close together so 
the electricity can easily be connected from the restroom to the scoreboard. 

After researching the location of sewer, power, and water, the Park Board feels 
the best location for the restroom is in the corner of the field off of Heathermoor Road. It 
should fit in the open area beside the batting cage. This is shown in two maps on the last 
page. This will also offer the best handicap accessibility. The other option was the lower 
end where the port-a-potty is and that location floods often and is not easily accessible for 
the handicap. 

Because of the cost of the restroom alone, the project will have to be bid out. If 
everything goes smoothly, we hope to get it installed this summer while school is out. 
Then the scoreboard can be used for football this Fall. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at 802-3879 or at 
williamssh(ir>,mtnbrook.org. 

Sincerely, 

Shanda Williams 
Superintendent of Parks and Recreation 

P-16-13



M
O
N
TEVALLO

D
R

VILLAG
E
CIR

BR O

O
K
M

AN
OR

DR

CANTERBURY RD

OF
FIC

E P
AR
K D

R

MO
NT
EV
AL
LO
 RD

HIGHW
AY 280 E

CH
ES
TE
R 
RD

C ULV
ER

R
D

HIGHW
AY 280 W

PETTICOAT LN

W
AT
K
IN
S
LN

JEMISO
N
LN

W

ATKIN
S
C
IR

O
V
E
R
H
IL
L
R
D

ALY

W

AT
KI

NS
RD

CAMBRIDGE RD

OFFICE PARK CIR

CAHABA RD

HE
AT
HE
RM

OO
R R

D

2708
2700

2615

2640
2613

2632 29002630
27012620

26412600
2633 2918

2615 2700

2632
2611

2605
2624

26372541
26082533 2633

2600 2621

3004

26172528
2609

2520
26012516

2605
2603

2601
2533

2517
2540

2532

2524
2418

2516
2402

2403
2508

25002820

2525
2517

2509
2501

2831
2508

2504
2837 2836

2406
2850

2909
2921

3

4 2

15

7

108

3013

3012

3021
26003037

3040 3048

2535

2529

25252512

2517
2508

2504 2509

2501
2509

2505

2501

12

2500

11

2721

2711

2803

2807

2817
2819
2829

2841 2847

2833
2834
2832
2830

2816

2423

2416

16
17

13

14

2505

2510

2506
2501

2504

2900

2827

2500

2903

7U

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

P-16-13 Zoning



 

 

P-16-13  

 

Petition Summary 
Request for a development plan for the Mountain Brook Elementary recreational fields to 

add a permanent restroom facility and a score board. 

 

Section 129-32 of the zoning code requires Planning Commission approval for 

improvements to an institutional use in the Residence-A District.  See attached letter from 

the City’s Parks and Recreation Director for specifics about the proposed project. 

 

The scoreboard is to be lighted, but the existing field lights are brighter than any light that 

would be emitted from the scoreboard. 

 

Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The subject property contains the recreational fields adjoining Mountain Brook 

Elementary and is surrounded by a mixture of single family, multi-family, institutional 

office and commercial uses. 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article III, Residence-A District; Section 129-32 Conditions on Certain Permitted Uses. 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  3041 Cambridge Road   

 

ZONING DISTRICT:  Res-A 

 

OWNER:  Mountain Brook Board of Education 

 
 

  

 

 

 



This is a photo of the restroom. We can choose a different color wall and roof. - - 
I-- T- 

I This is a similar scoreboard at the Complex 

P-16-13



P-16-13

hazend
Oval

hazend
Oval



P-16-13



WATKINS LN

CAHABA RD

OFFI
CEPARK CIR

MOUNTAIN BROOK CIR

ALY

CAM
BRIDGE RD

HE
AT
HE
RM

OO
R R

D

WATKINS RD

CANTER
BURY

RD

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN,
IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

P-16-13 Aerial



 

 

Amendment to Article XVIII, Section 129-295 Temporary Uses –  

Open Houses, Home Tours and Special Events. 
 

 

Summary 
The proposed amendment is designed to provide a regulatory framework for open houses, 

home tours and other similar charitable and special events in the residential districts of 

the City.  The frequency of these types of events has increased over the past few years, 

and the attendance of such has increased as well, causing parking problems, fire lane 

hazards and neighborhood contention.  The proposed ordinance will help streamline the 

process and mitigate potential negative impacts to surrounding properties. 

 

See attached draft ordinance (new language in red).   

 



 CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

 NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ZONING 

 ORDINANCE AND OF PUBLIC HEARING THEREUPON 

 
Notice is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Mountain 

Brook, Alabama, to be held on April 4, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. in Council Chambers at Mountain Brook City 

Hall, 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, Alabama, said Planning Commission will hold a public hearing 

to consider a proposed amendment to Chapter 129 of the Code of the City of Mountain Brook, as it 

pertains to Section 129-295 Temporary Uses, as follows: 

 

“Section 129-295 Temporary Uses.   

(a) Yard sales. A resident of the city may conduct sales commonly known as yard sales, garage 

sales or estate sales (hereinafter collectively referred to as "yard sales") at the resident's 

dwelling, or at the dwelling of another resident of the city, under the conditions specified 

herein below. All such sales shall be subject to the same monitoring and enforcement 

procedures set forth in article XXIII of this chapter (applicable to home occupations).  

 

(1)  Not more than one yard sale shall be held at any dwelling during any calendar year.  

(2)        No person may participate in, including having his property sold at, more than one 

yard sale in the city during any calendar year, regardless of whether such additional 

sale is held at his dwelling or at the dwelling of another person.  

(3)  An agent may be hired to assist in the conduct of, or to conduct, such sale if all 

property for sale is displayed or located within the dwelling or within an accessory 

structure of the dwelling or in a portion of the dwelling's yard which is not visible 

from any street which is adjacent to the parcel on which the dwelling is located.  

(4)  Yard sales shall be limited to two days in duration, which days must be consecutive; 

however, a yard sale may last for up to four consecutive days if all property for sale is 

displayed or located within the dwelling or within an accessory structure of the 

dwelling or in a portion of the dwelling's yard which is not visible from any street 

which is adjacent to the parcel on which the dwelling is located.  

(5)  A permit shall be required for each yard sale, regardless of the number of people who 

participate in a sale, for which a fee to help defray the cost of issuing the permit will 

be charged in accordance with article XXVII of this chapter. Although only one 

permit will be required for each sale, each person who participates in the yard sale 

must be named as an applicant for the permit. Application for such permit must be 

filed with the city clerk prior to the first day of the proposed yard sale.  

(6)  One sign, not to exceed six square feet in area, may be posted in the yard of the 

dwelling in which the yard sale is conducted. The sign may be in the yard for a period 

not to exceed four consecutive days, including the day or days of the sale itself, and 

must be removed within 24 hours after the conclusion of the sale.  

 

(b) Trunk sales. Trunk sales, defined for the purposes of this chapter to mean the sale of new 

clothes, clothing accessories and other consumer goods by means of the purchaser ordering 

such items or goods from samples and/or catalogs available for inspection at a dwelling 

during the trunk sale, may be conducted at the dwelling of a resident of the city under the 

conditions specified herein below, and all such sales shall also be subject to the same 



monitoring and enforcement procedures set forth in article XXIII of this chapter (applicable 

to home occupations).  

 

(1)  In addition to the monitoring and enforcement procedures made applicable in this 

section, the conditions for use of dwelling for a home occupation set forth in article 

XXIII of this chapter (home occupations) shall also be applicable to the use of 

dwellings for trunk sales.  

(2)        No more than four trunk sales shall be conducted at anyone dwelling during anyone 

calendar year.  

(3)  Not more than two people who are not residents of the dwelling at which a trunk sale 

is conducted may conduct or assist with a trunk sale; provided, that: (1) Any such 

people must be employees, agents or representatives of the company which produces 

the goods to be sold at the trunk sale; and (2) An adult resident of the dwelling at 

which the trunk sale is being held is present at the trunk sale when it is held.  

(4)  There shall be no goods in the dwelling that are available for sale.  

(5)        Trunk sales shall be limited to a maximum of five days in duration, which days must 

be consecutive.  

(6)       However, a single permit may be issued for all trunk sales to be held at a dwelling 

during any calendar year, provided that either the dates of all such sales are included 

in the application for the permit; or written notice of the place, date and time of each 

sale, along with a copy of the permit previously issued for that calendar year, are 

delivered to the zoning officer at least seven days before each such sale is to be held.  

(7)        The permit fee must be paid for each permit applied for, but only the application for 

the first permit must be accompanied by an application for a business license; 

provided, that thereafter the business license is kept in effect. The drawings, plans or 

other requirements of article XXIII of this chapter made applicable to trunk sales by 

this section need be filed only with the application for the first permit unless a 

different portion of the dwelling is to be used for a subsequent trunk sale.  

(c)  Open Houses, Home Tours and Special Events. Open houses, home tours and other special 

events ("Special Events') wherein a residential premise or part thereof is made open to the 

public for a fee, donation or other remuneration or otherwise for commercial or charitable 

purposes may be conducted in the residential districts of the city under the conditions 

specified herein below. Such uses shall also be subject to the same monitoring and 

enforcement procedures set forth in article XXIII of this chapter (applicable to home 

occupation).  

(1) No more than one (1) such Special Event(s) shall be conducted at any one residential 

premises during anyone calendar year.  

(2) Such Special Event shall be limited to a maximum of five (5) days in duration which 

days must be within a fourteen day period beginning with the first day of the event.  

(3) No goods shall be sold at the Special Event other than furniture, furnishings or other 

items used to furnish the home or premises.  



(4) A permit shall be required for each Special Event for which a fee to help defray the 

cost of issuing the permit will be charged in accordance with article XXVII of this 

chapter. Application for such permit, in the form and with all information requested 

by the city, must be submitted to the city clerk at least thirty (30) days prior to the date 

upon which the Special Event is scheduled to begin.  

(5) If, after review of the application, the City Manager determines that the parking or the 

public rights of way are insufficient to anticipated traffic volume for the Special 

Event, the City manager may require the use of remote parking areas and shuttle buses 

or valet services, the engagement of law enforcement officers by the applicant to 

assist with vehicular traffic or other measures designed to reduce the impact on 

surrounding properties and the public rights of way in the area.  

(6) For the purposes of this section, an open house or home tour conducted for the sale 

purpose of marketing or sale of the residential premises themselves and for which a 

fee, donation or other remuneration is not collected shall be permitted and shall not be 

subject to the conditions in this subsection.  

(d) Temporary structures and related items. Any structures or items associated with construction 

taking place on a parcel, or with other activities of a temporary nature, including, but not 

limited to, portable toilets, shall be placed so as to be in conformity with the minimum 

setback requirements applicable to the principal building on such parcel.  

(e) Signs re: sale or rental of property. A sign advertising the sale or rental of a parcel may be 

placed in the front yard of any parcel; provided, that such sign may not exceed six square feet 

in area.”  

   At the aforesaid time and place, all persons who desire shall have an opportunity to be heard in 

opposition to or in favor of adoption of the proposed amendment. 

 

For questions concerning these proposed zoning amendments, please contact: 

Dana Hazen, AICP, MPA 

Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 

205/802-3821   

hazend@mtnbrook.org 

 CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Tammy Graham, Administrative Assistant for the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, do hereby certify 

that I have caused notice of the proposed amendment to the zoning ordinance and of public meeting 

thereupon set forth above to be published and provided in the manner specified by Article XXV, Sec. 

129-431, of the Mountain Brook City Code.   I further certify that I have posted said notice in four 

conspicuous places within the City of Mountain Brook, in the manner and within the time permitted by 

law, said places being: 

Mountain Brook City Hall, 56 Church Street 

Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 

The Clock Tower, 99 Church Street 

Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 

 

_______________________________ 

Tammy Graham, Administrative Assistant 


	Cover Memo
	Agenda 20160502
	Minutes 20160404
	Case P-16-10
	P-16-10 Application
	P-16-10 Zoning
	P-16-10 Report
	P-16-10 proposed resurvey
	P-16-10 Vacation of 10 foot strip (1)
	P-16-10 vacation document plat
	P-16-10 General Warranty Deed
	P-16-10 Aerial

	Case P-16-11
	P-16-11 Application
	P-16-11 Zoning
	P-16-11 Applicant Request
	P-16-11 Report
	P-16-11 proposed resurvey
	P-16-11 Aerial

	Case P-16-12
	P-16-12 Application
	P-16-12 Applicant Request
	P-16-12 Zoning
	P-16-12 Report
	P-16-12 proposed resurvey
	P-16-12 Aerial

	Case P-16-13
	P-16-13 Application
	P-16-13 Applicant Request
	P-16-13 Zoning
	P-16-13 report
	P-16-13 Photo
	P-16-13 Aerial Photos
	P-16-13 Floor Plans
	P-16-13 Aerial

	Case zoning amendment - temporary uses
	amendment - temporary uses - Report
	Legal Notice PC- Temporary Uses




